
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

NOVEMBER 5, 2012 
 

 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Public Hearing and Action:

12-21 Case Analysis 4
12-21 Site Plan 13

Consideration and Action:
07-10 Memo 14
07-10 Applicant Request 15
07-10 Site Plan 16

Consideration and Action:
06-27 Memo 25
06-27 Applicant Request 26
06-27 Site Plan 27

Consideration and Action:
05-35 Memo 28
05-35 Applicant Request 29
05-35 Site Plan 30

Appointment to Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District Advisory
Board

Terrance M. Anderson 31
Approval of October 15, 2012 Minutes

October 15 Minutes 33
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendments 43
ITS Surplus Resolution

ITS Surplus 11052012 51

1



Document last changed: 10/31/2012 8:25 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, November 05, 2012 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours:  Request for a 
special use permit for an outdoor tour operation - horse tours.  The 
property is located at 1024 Ocean Trail, Corolla Light, Tax Map 115B, 
Parcel P14, Poplar Branch Township (Beach). 

B) Consideration and Action: PB 07-10 South Ridge, Planned Unit 
Development (PUD):  Request for a preliminary plat/special use permit 
extension consisting of 146 single family patio home lots, 5.46 acres of 
limited business-hotel designation, and 1.75 acre county dedicated 
community facility site. The property is located at 120 Survey Road, 
adjacent to Eagle Creek subdivision, Moyock Township. 

C) Consideration and Action: PB 06-27 Village Square of Currituck: 
Request for a preliminary plat extension for a nine lot commercial 
subdivision located on Caratoke Highway, Crawford Township. 

D) Consideration and Action: PB 05-35 Currituck Fields:  Request for a 
preliminary plat extension for a 25-lot residential subdivision located off of 
North Currituck Road, Crawford Township.   2

dembrey
Typewritten Text
2



Document last changed: 10/31/2012 8:25 AM 

 
New Business 

 
A) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointment to Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District Advisory 
Board 

B) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of October 15, 2012 Minutes 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. ITS Surplus Resolution 

C) Commissioner’s Report 
D) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com
dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
3



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 1 of 9 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: November 5, 2012 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

 
ITEM:   PB12-21 Sunseekers Tours – SUP Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 

 
LOCATION:  1024 Ocean Trail  

TAX ID: 115B-000-0P14-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: GB - General Business    
  
PRESENT USE: Maintenance Vehicle Parking, Sports Center Parking Lot 
 
OWNER:  Outer Banks Ventures 
   215 Brooke Avenue, No 1001 
   Norfolk, VA 23510 
 
APPLICANT:  Donald Cheek 
   1131 Gray Court 
   Corolla, NC 27927 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Corolla Light Sports Center/Residential Zoned RO1 
SOUTH Undeveloped Zoned RO1/GB 
EAST:  Residential Lots/Office/Utility Zoned RO1/GB 
WEST: Residential Zoned RO1 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 5.89 acres 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

a. The applicant seeks a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Tour Operator  
b. The request is for one vehicle (seating 6-10) to be used for guided tours.  

Passengers will load and unload at the Sports Center site. Passengers have access 
to the existing Corolla Light Trolley. Tours are available exclusively to Corolla 
Light Owners and Guests. 

c. Restrooms are provided at the Sports Center. 
d. The tour vehicle will be parked in the existing maintenance parking lot 
e. There are no proposed structures or facilities associated with this request. 
f. The Board of Commissioners has considered limiting the total number of horse tour 

vehicles; however, no action has been taken to date. 
 

4



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 2 of 9 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 

indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a.  Outdoor Tour Operators are permitted in the GB zoning district with a Special Use 

Permit. 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed conditions include all of the provisions for Outdoor Tour Operators in 

Section 3.7.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance.  
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Based on the submittal, the project will not endanger the public health or safety. 
b. There are no proposed changes to the existing site. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 

harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The parcel is currently in a commercial area that includes a putt-putt golf course and 

the Corolla Light Sports Center. 
 

6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 
plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Conservation within the Corolla subarea.  
Insert LUP classification narrative.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the 
plan, some of which are: 

a. Policy ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 
encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

5



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 3 of 9 

b. Policy HP3: Development of the tourism and educational potential of the area's 
architectural, historic and cultural resources shall be encouraged. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 

including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining 
when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Approval of this request should have no impact on public facilities 

 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL subject to the following: 
1. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day.  
2. Tour/Rental vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display 

the company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 
3. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches 

and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances. Tours 
shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

4. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two 
parking spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking 
space required for every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur on-site, 
additional parking may be required per the Unified Development Ordinance.  Provided 
the tours continue to be limited to Corolla Light Owners and Guests, there is adequate 
parking.   

Use Parking Requirement Quantity Parking Total 

Horse Tour Rentals 
Tour vehicle seating 6-10 persons 

= 2 space per vehicle 

 
1 2 

Employees (Horse 
tours) 1 space/2 employees 

 
1 1 

Total Parking associated with this Use 3 

 
5. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used as 

long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  Reserve 
vehicles must be stored at an approved location. 

6. This special use permit shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and a report 
shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the nature of 
any complaints received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of the Code 
Enforcement Officer or Board of Commissioners, the special use permit shall be subject to 
revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public hearing. 

7. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles, hours of 
operation, and permit duration as part of the special use permit approval process. 

 
 
 
 
 

6



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 4 of 9 

IV.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 The Planning Board recommended approval of the special use permit with findings of fact 

and staff recommendations. 

7



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 5 of 9 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (October 9, 2012)  
Mr. Cooper asked what are the parking requirements where the tours will load and unload. 
 
Ms. Voliva stated since this request is exclusively for Corolla Light owners and guests, a trolley will 
be picking passengers up at their home. There are parking spaces available at the Sports Center 
site if people choose to drive and park their cars. 
  
Ms. Senanni stated she would be happy to answer any questions the board may have. Restrooms 
are provided at the Sports Center. 
 
Ms. Wilson asked what type of vehicle will be used. 
 
Ms. Senanni stated it will be like a cattle vehicle, which is open on the top and only one vehicle. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Wilson moved to approve PB 12-21 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Mr. Cooper seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

8



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 6 of 9 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Donald Cheek, Sunseekers Tours 
 
From: Jennie Newbern 
 
Date: September 12, 2012 
 
Re:  PB 12-21Sunseekers Tours Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 
 
The following comments have been received for the September 19, 2012 TRC meeting.  In order 
to be scheduled for the October 9, 2012 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments 
by 3:00 p.m. on September 24, 2012.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of 
the TRC meeting.  
 
Planning, Jennie Newbern 
Reviewed 
 

1. Provide a narrative of the business operations on the property (i.e. where do patrons 
board, de-board) 

2. Provide the total number of tour vehicles  
3. Provide the capacity of each tour vehicle 
4. The parking on the site plan is shown as customer parking; will customers load at the 

maintenance parking lot? 
5. Provide the number of employees on the largest shift 
6. Provide the hours of operation 
7. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day.  Tag-a-long tours are 

permitted as long as the lead vehicle is operated by an employee of the tour company 
and subsequent vehicles are under the employee’s supervision. 

8. Tour/Rental vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display 
the company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 

9. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches 
and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances. Tours 
shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

10. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two 
parking spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking 
space required for every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur on-site, 
additional parking may be required per the Unified Development Ordinance.  

11. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used as 
long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  Reserve 
vehicles must be stored at an approved location. 

12. This special use permit is valid for one year from the date of approval and shall remain 
valid so long as the conditions under which it is granted are met. 

13. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles as part of the 
special use permit approval process. 

 
 
 

9



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 7 of 9 

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Approved 
 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed - None 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Approval with corrections – customer parking must have one van accessible HC parking space.  
Space must be closest to pick up area 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed- Before I could approve this I would want to see the proposed route of tours and their 
plans to facilitate their customer’s restroom needs. 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
No Comment 
 
NCDENR, Land Quality, Pat McClain 
No Comment 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed – WILL RESTROOMS BE PROVIDED FOR CUSTOMERS AT OUTDOOR RECREATION 
TOURING AREAS AND WHERE ARE THE CLOSEST PUBLIC RESTROOMS LOCATED? THANK YOU. 
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
Reviewed – It is unclear from narrative if the structure is being used for restrooms, and/or office 
or they are only using the parking spaces.  To the best of my knowledge the structure was 
designed and permitted as storage. Not F-factory or B-business.  There is not a maintenance 
classification in the building code. 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 
 
Please note that comments were not received from the following: 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
 

10



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 8 of 9 

 
 

 

11



 
PB 12-21 Sunseekers Tours 

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 9 of 9 

 

12



13



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: October 17, 2012 
 
Subject: South Ridge, PUD, Preliminary Plat Extension 
 
 
On February 1, 2010, the Board of Commissioners voted to approve the preliminary 
plat/special use permit for South Ridge.  This is a planned unit development consisting of 146 
single family patio home lots, 5.46 acres of limited business-hotel designation, and 1.75 acre 
county dedicated community facility site located at 120 Survey Road and adjacent to Eagle 
Creek subdivision.  The preliminary plat approval was due to expire on February 1, 2012.  
The North Carolina General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period for 
development approvals that were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through 
December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the preliminary plat expiration date is January 1, 
2013.   
 
On September 24, 2012 the developer’s attorney, Matthew J. Ragaller, submitted a request 
for a two year preliminary plat extension of the subdivision citing economic reasons (see 
attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the 
Board of Commissioners may grant an extension of the preliminary plat one time for a period 
of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire January 1, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence, however, due to the economy 

have not been able to proceed as desired.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

 
 
 

 

14

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com
dembrey
Typewritten Text



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: October 17, 2012 
 
Subject:  Village Square at Currituck, Preliminary Plat Extension 
 
 
On November 13, 2007, the Planning Board voted to approve the preliminary plat for 
Village Square at Currituck.  This is a nine lot commercial subdivision located on Caratoke 
Highway in Currituck.  The preliminary plat approval was due to expire on November 13, 
2009.  The North Carolina General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period 
for development approvals that were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through 
December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the preliminary plat expiration date is November 
13, 2012.   
 
On October 4, 2012 the surveyor, Eddie Hyman, Jr., submitted a request for a two year 
preliminary plat extension of the subdivision citing economic reasons (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the 
Board of Commissioners may grant an extension of the preliminary plat one time for a period 
of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire November 13, 2012. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence and obtained local, state, and 

federal permits.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

 
 

 
 
 

 

25

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


26



27



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: October 17, 2012 
 
Subject: Currituck Fields, Preliminary Plat Extension 
 
 
On November 13, 2007, the Planning Board voted to approve the preliminary plat for 
Currituck Fields.  This is a 25-lot residential subdivision located on off of North Currituck Road 
in Currituck.  The preliminary plat approval was due to expire on November 13, 2009.  The 
North Carolina General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period for 
development approvals that were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through 
December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the preliminary plat expiration date is November 
13, 2012.   
 
On October 4, 2012 the surveyor, Eddie Hyman, Jr., submitted a request for a two year 
preliminary plat extension of the subdivision citing economic reasons (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the 
Board of Commissioners may grant an extension of the preliminary plat one time for a period 
of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire November 13, 2012. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence and obtained local, state, and 

federal permits.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

 
 

 
 
 

 

28

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


29



30



31



32



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
October 15, 2012   
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the Commissioners 
Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Rorer, 
Commissioners Gilbert, O’Neal, Etheridge, Martin and Petrey. 
Commissioner Aydlett was absent due to illness. 
  

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 

 
The Reverend Dennis Crehan, Jarvisburg Church of Christ, was 
present to give the invocation. 
 

C) Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner O’Neal moved to amend the agenda by adding to the 
consent agenda a resolution to apply for certain state and 
federal grant funding.  Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please 
limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-19 Barry Nelms:  Request to amend the new 
Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: Development Standards to allow off-
premise directional signs for properties located adjacent to the Currituck 
Sound. 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-18 Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance Administrative Manual:  Request to approve the Administrative Manual 
for the new Unified Development Ordinance. 

C) Consideration and Action: PB 07-39 Nicholson's Point, Planned Unit Development: 
Request for a preliminary plat/special use permit extension for 140 residential 
units in Maple, Crawford Township. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Presentation by the Currituck County Joint Community Advisory Committee, 
Proclamation for National Alzheimer's Disease and National Family caregiver 
Awareness Month  

 
 
 
 

33



October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   2 
 
New Business 

A) Consent Agenda: 
1. Adoption of CDBG Program Manual 
2. Change Order for a decrease in the amount of $61,255.31, to the 

wastewater treatment plant at Maple Commerce Park 
3. Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency Management Agencies 
4. Budget Amendments 
5. Request for Finance Record Disposal per record retention schedule 
6. Resolution to apply for certain State and Federal Grant Funding 
7. Approval of October 1, 2012 Minutes 

B) Commissioner’s Report 
C) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 
 

D) Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Chairman Rorer opened the public comment period. 
 
Barbara Snowden, County Historian, presented the Board with a 
poster of Charles Johnson Civil War sketches of Currituck County 
from 1862.  Ms. Snowden said that they would be on sale for the 
county to place in the county offices and schools. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman Rorer closed the 
public comment period. 
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-19 Barry Nelms:  Request 
to amend the new Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: 
Development Standards to allow off-premise directional 
signs for properties located adjacent to the Currituck 
Sound. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 
The enclosed text amendment, submitted by Barry Nelms of Barry’s 
on Walnut Island Restaurant and Lodge, proposes to allow off-
premise directional signage for businesses located adjacent to 
the Currituck Sound.  This request is being reviewed as an 
amendment to the new Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).   
 

 34

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   3 
 

The UDO was recently amended to allow off-premise directional 
signage for businesses located adjacent to the Atlantic 
Intracoastal Waterway.  This request would allow off-premise 
directional signage for businesses along Currituck Sound under 
the same standards and procedures.  
 
While staff is sympathetic to the difficult economic times that 
exist for businesses, increasing the frequency of off-premise 
directional signage is not consistent with the policy objectives 
of the 2006 Land Use Plan (Polices CA1, CA4, CA5).  Policy CA5 
states: “...that an attractive, less commercialized landscape, 
particularly along heavily traveled land and water routes, is 
essential to the tourist-based economy of the area.  The 
placement of additional billboards and off-site advertising 
signs shall not be permitted in Currituck County.” 
 
Due to the policy direction included in the Land Use Plan, staff 
cannot support this text amendment request as it would only 
strengthen the precedent to allow off-premise signage in the 
county. 
 
The Planning Board recommended denial of PB 12-19 with staff 
recommendations, potential impact of number of businesses on the 
Currituck Sound vs. number of businesses on the Atlantic 
Intracoastal Waterway, and due to its inconsistency with the 
2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is not reasonable and 
not in the public interest and does not promotes orderly growth 
and development. 
  
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (September 11, 2012) 
The Planning Board asked staff the number of businesses on the 
Mainland and Outer Banks located on the Currituck Sound which 
would be affected by this request. Staff did not have this 
information available. The Planning Board also noted that new 
businesses located on the sound would benefit from this request.  
 
Ms. Wilson stated this could transfer to the Outer Banks since 
there are many businesses that are located on the Currituck 
Sound. This makes it different from the Atlantic Intracoastal 
Waterway. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to deny PB 12-19 with staff recommendations, 
potential impact of number of businesses on the Currituck Sound 
vs. number of businesses on the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway, 
and due to its inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
that the request is not reasonable and not in the public 

 35

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   4 
 

interest and does not promote orderly growth and development.  
Ms. Newbern seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
Barry Nelms, applicant, reviewed the history of his restaurant 
and why directional signs were needed for all businesses on the 
sound. He also stated that the Board previously granted 
permission for Crabbie’s Restaurant to have a directional sign. 
 
Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairman Rorer stated that the current ordinance has flaws and 
supports directional signs for businesses. 
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to return this to the Planning Board. 
 
Commissioner O’Neal requested that this ordinance amendment go 
back to staff for further study. 
 
Commissioner Petrey amended his motion to have this ordinance go 
back to staff for a comprehensive study and bring back 
recommendations to the Board.  Commissioner Martin seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-18 Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance Administrative Manual:  
Request to approve the Administrative Manual for the new 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 
The purpose of the administrative manual is to assist in the 
administration of the new Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  
It is similar to the development review process manual of the 
current UDO. The administrative manual’s primary goal is to 
explain the review procedures of development applications 
established in the UDO.  The manual contains, among other 
things: application forms, staff review checklist, planting 
details, and submittal and fee schedules.  The manual 
consolidates information in the development review process, and 

36

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   5 
 

helps applicants understand the procedures and requirements.  
The intent of the manual is more specifically to: 
 

A. Establish a process that is clear and understandable to all 
interested parties, applicants and staff; 

B. Clarify the standards and procedures for submitting 
complete and relevant information for development 
applications; 

C. Provide information and tools to assist applicants during 
the review process; 

D. Provide official interpretations of the UDO; and 
E. Establish planting standards that promote health and 

survival of landscaping installed in the county.  
 
The administrative manual is divided into three parts: 
 

1. Introduction 
 The introduction provides background on the manual and its 

purpose, and recognizes it as part of the UDO.  
 
2. Procedures and Applications 

Contains detailed review processes, applications, and 
design and submittal checklists for all development 
applications established in the UDO.   
 

3. Appendices 
Contain standards that are applicable to all development 
applications, specifically, flood damage prevention, 
planting standards, and official interpretations.  Also 
included are items that may assist applicants in the 
development review process including links to useful tools 
(UDO, Land Use Plan, online mapping) and staff review 
checklist.  Finally, the appendices establish submittal and 
fee schedules for development applications.  

 
The administrative manual will be available on the county’s 
website for review.  The direct link will be emailed to you once 
it is posted.  Should you have any questions on the manual, 
please contact Brad Schuler, Planner I, at 232-6033 or 
Brad.Schuler@CurrituckCountyNC.gov. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-18 as presented 
due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the 
request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes 
orderly growth and development. 
 
 

37

mailto:Brad.Schuler@CurrituckCountyNC.gov
http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   6 
 

Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner O’Neal requested to continue so that he could have 
more time to review the manual. 
 
Commissioner Martin moved to continue to next meeting.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

C) Consideration and Action: PB 07-39 Nicholson's Point, 
Planned Unit Development: Request for a preliminary 
plat/special use permit extension for 140 residential units 
in Maple, Crawford Township. 
 

On December 7, 2009, the Board of Commissioners voted to approve 
the preliminary plat/special use permit for Nicholson’s Point, a 
140 lot planned unit development located in Maple, Crawford 
Township.  The preliminary plat/special use permit approval was 
due to expire on December 7, 2011.  The North Carolina General 
Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period for 
development approvals that were valid at any time during January 
1, 2008 through December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the 
preliminary plat/special use permit expiration date is January 
1, 2013.   
 
On August 20, 2012 James N. Owens submitted a request for a two 
year preliminary plat/special use permit extension of the 
subdivision. 
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and 
Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the Board of Commissioners may grant 
an extension of the preliminary plat/special use permit one time 
for a period of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire January 

1, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and 
in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence to move 

this project forward and has a significant investment 
in the proposed development. 

 

38

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   7 
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to 
warrant a new application.  Successive extensions shall 
not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required 
for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension 

request.   
 
Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve the extension.  
Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Presentation by the Currituck County Joint Community 
Advisory Committee, Proclamation for National Alzheimer's 
Disease and National Family caregiver Awareness Month  

 
Barbara Courtney reviewed some of the statistics of Alzheimer’s 
disease.  She invited citizens to a candlelight vigil on 
November 1st at 6:00 p.m. at the Senior Center. 
 
Chairman Rorer moved to adopt the resolution.  Commissioner 
Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
NATIONAL ALZHEIMER’S DISEASE AWARENESS MONTH 

 AND  
NATIONAL FAMILY CAREGIVER MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, Currituck North Carolina joins in recognizing 
National Alzheimer’s Disease Awareness and Family Caregiver 
month beginning November 1, 2012 through November 30, 2012, 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, Alzheimer’s disease is a progressive degenerative 
disease of the brain causing deterioration in memory and 
thinking, as well as judgment and reasoning ability; while it 
also affects behavior, emotions and the ability to perform 
self-care; and  
 
WHEREAS, national research shows that over 5 million Americans 
in the United States are living with the disease, and 
additionally that 1,252 Americans are diagnosed daily. 
According to the National Institute on Aging, the total 
national cost per year for Alzheimers care is estimated at 
over $100 billion for diagnosis, extended care, and family 
caregiver illness; and 

39

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   8 
 

 
WHEREAS, according to the North Carolina Department of Health 
and Human Services it is estimated more than 170,000 older 
adults currently have Alzheimer’s disease or other types of 
dementia; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alzheimer’s disease is the sixth leading cause of 
death for people of all ages and the fifth leading cause for 
adults over age 65, and;  
 
WHEREAS, it is estimated that for every individual with 
Alzheimer’s disease - up to four family members act as 
caregivers, and their care giving, on average, will be 8 
years, but may be as long as 20 years, and; 
 
WHEREAS, more than 70% of the people with Alzheimer’s disease 
live at home and are cared for by family and friends, and;  
 
WHEREAS, in Currituck County, based on the 2010 census, it is 
estimated that 424 persons have the disease, and over 1700 
caregivers are affected;  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Currituck recognizes individuals, 
families, friends, and caregivers dealing with the devastating 
effects of Alzheimer’s disease, the researchers who are 
seeking a cause or causes and cure, and the educational 
programs and support services provided by North Carolina 
Alzheimer’s organizations and the Area Agency on Aging; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners, do hereby proclaim November 2012 as 
“Alzheimer’s Disease Awareness Month” in Currituck, North 
Carolina and commit its observance to all citizens.  

 

New Business 
A) Consent Agenda: 

1) Adoption of CDBG Program Manual 
2) Change Order for a decrease in the amount of 

$61,255.31, to the wastewater treatment plant at Maple 
Commerce Park 

3) Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency 
Management Agencies 

4) Budget Amendments 
5) Request for Finance Record Disposal per record 

retention schedule 

40

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   9 
 

6) Resolution to apply for certain State and Federal 
Grant Funding 

7) Approval of October 1, 2012 Minutes 
 
Commissioner Martin moved to approve.  Commissioner Etheridge 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

Debit 
 

Credit 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense 

26535-514000 Travel  $                     1,210  
26535-514500 Training & Education  $                     2,200  
26535-590000 Capital Outlay  $                   3,410  

 $                     3,410   $                   3,410  

Explanation: Emergency Telephone System (26535) - Transfer capital funds from capital outlay to 
travel/training for Center Manager Certification Program.  Residual funds available 
from cost savings on recorder purchase. 

Net Budget Effect: Emergency Telephone System Fund (26) - No change. 
 
 

Debit 
 

Credit 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense 

10550-516400 Equipment Maintenance  $                     1,722  
10550-532000 Supplies  $                     1,190  
10550-545000 Contract Services  $                     7,590  
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery  $                   9,502  
10550-516000 Maintenance & Repair  $                   1,000  

 $                   10,502   $                 10,502  

Explanation: Airport (10550) - Increase appropriations to record insurance recovery due to 
lightning damage at the airport. 
      

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $9,502. 
 

41

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


October 15, 2012 BOC Meeting   10 
 

 
Debit 

 
Credit 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense 

66868-545000 Contract Services  $                   2,200  
66868-590000 Capital Outlay  $                     2,200  

 $                     2,200   $                   2,200  

Explanation: Southern Outer Banks Water (66868) - Transfer funds for well pump and motor at Shad 
Street. 

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water (66) - No change. 
 
 

B) Commissioner’s Report 
Commissioner Petrey reminded citizens to get out and vote. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert stated that the Moyock Small Area Plan was 
on the web. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated that there would be a meet the 
candidates forum at the Bells Island Club House, October 21st. 
 
Commissioner Etheridge commented on the insurance premium 
increase for homeowners on the coast. 
 
Commissioner O’Neal stated that someone should attend the public 
comment period on October 19th in Raleigh regarding this 
insurance increase of 30%. 
 

C) County Manager’s Report 
No comments 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.  
 

42

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013032

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10430-590000 Capital Outlay 1,700$                        
10430-532000 Supplies 1,700$                      

1,700$                        1,700$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Elections (10430) - Transfer funds for additional voting booths.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

43

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013033

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-532000 Supplies 8,900$                        
10510-590000 Capital Outlay 1,100$                        
10330-424000 Officer Fees 10,000$                    

10,000$                      10,000$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations for computer software and promotional items for use with 
students by the Sheriff's department.  This will be funded through ordinance violation fees.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $10,000.

44

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013034

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

52530-533900 Ambulance Supplies 12,601$                      
52530-590000 Capital Outlay 30,168$                      
52330-448701 DPR1 Grant - Medical Bus Supplies 42,769$                    

42,769$                      42,769$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

DPR1 Grant (52530) - To record Grant EMW-2012-SS-00100-S01 for Medical Bus Supplies.  This is 
funded through 100% grant funds from the FY 2012 State Homeland Security Grant Program.  Capital 
purchases are 2 Defribilators/Cardiac Monitors for $10,584 each and 3 stretchers for $3,000 each.

Net Budget Effect: Multi-year Grant Fund (52) - Increased by $42,769.

45

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013035

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-516000 Maintenance & Repair 5,987$                        
10460-545000 Contract Services 5,987$                      

5,987$                        5,987$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Social Services Administration (10750); Public Works (10460) - Transfer funds to replace the fire 
supression valve in the DSS building.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

46

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013036

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

66868-587056 T T - SOBWS Construction Fund 5,577,844$                 
66390-495015 T F - Occupancy Tax Fund 5,577,844$               

5,577,844$                 5,577,844$               

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66868) - To carry forward loan funds for the Southern Outer 
Banks Water Expansion.

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66) - Increased by $5,577,844.

47

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013037

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10515-514800 Fees Paid to Officials 150$                           
10515-557100 Software License Fee 50$                           
10380-482000 Miscellaneous 100$                         

150$                           150$                         

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Jury Commission (10515) - To increase appropriations to certify the Jury listing on the new software.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $100.

48

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013038

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10440-590000 Capital Outlay 1,650$                        
10440-545000 Contract Services 2,000$                        
10350-468000 Sale of Fixed Assets 3,650$                      

3,650$                        3,650$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Finance (10440) - Increase appropriations to replace printer module for check signatures and for 
listing costs for Gov Deals.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $3,650.

49

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013039

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-502000 Salary 4,281$                        
10750-505000 FICA 2,430$                        
10750-506000 Health Insurance 4,544$                        
10750-507000 Retirement 3,739$                        
10750-532000 Supplies 900$                           
10320-411000 Article 39 Sales Tax 15,894$                    

15,894$                      15,894$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 5th day of November, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Social Services Administration (10750) - Increase appropriations to hire an additional Income 
Maintenance Caseworker II position.  This position will begin December 1, 2012.  This position will 
train with a current Social Worker that will be retiring.  The Social Worker position will not be filled until 
March 2013.  These positions will be partially funded through grant funds and lapsed salary.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $15,894.

50

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Description Service Tag/Serial No. Asset Tag Item No.
Panasonic CF-29 4BKYA20427 5833 H001
Dell Optiplex SX280  (SFF) 6CLSL71 NONE H002
Compaq Armada 1750 3J98CJ23T006 5323 H003
Dell Optiplex GX280 32B9X51 5933 H004
HP Compaq nx9030 CNF50402N4 5973 H005
HP Compaq nx9010 2UA423P0XQ 5861 H006
Dell PowerEdge 750 GJML351 5856 H007
Dell PowerEdge 750 HJML351 5857 H008
Dell PowerEdge 2850 10D0Y81 6055 H009
Dell PowerEdge 4600 3W4YV21 5702 H010
Dell PowerEdge 2850 FDX8V71 6038 H011
Dell PowerEdge 2950 6LX3NB1 6286 H012
HP nx9010 CNF405101L 5836 H013
Dell Latitude D810 2KF5R91 6162 H014
HP nx9010 CNF405100L 5837 H015
Dell Optiplex GX260 (old Locates PC from a grant) 4L1CC21 NONE H016
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SBQ1174 NONE H017
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) cannot see serial number NONE H018
Generic PC 2862445-0001 NONE H019
Dell Optiplex GX260 B35R121 5642B H020
Dell Optiplex GX240 7Y3JZ01 NONE H021
Dell Latitude D810 CWD9L81 6054 H022
Dell Latitude D820 BWGSMC1 6410 H023
Printronix P5005B Printer 480320069710 5693 H024

ADOPTED, this 5th day of November 2012.

John Rorer, Chairman
Currituck County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Gwen H. Keene, CMC
Clerk to the Board

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during its regularly 
scheduled meeting held on November 5, 2012  authorized the following, pursuant to GS 160A and 270(b), 
that the property listed below, be sold at auction or given to another governmental entity:

R E S O L U T I O N

51

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com

	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	12-21 Case Analysis
	12-21 Site Plan

	Consideration and Action:
	07-10 Memo
	07-10 Applicant Request
	07-10 Site Plan

	Consideration and Action:
	06-27 Memo
	06-27 Applicant Request
	06-27 Site Plan

	Consideration and Action:
	05-35 Memo
	05-35 Applicant Request
	05-35 Site Plan

	Appointment to Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District Advisory Board
	Terrance M. Anderson

	Approval of October 15, 2012 Minutes
	Budget Amendments
	ITS Surplus Resolution



